

## —— Planning, Development, & Zoning ——

#### City of Alpena Planning Commission

Regular Meeting

Tuesday, January 10th, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m.

This meeting will be held in Council Chambers as well as virtually.

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

https://www.gotomeet.me/CityofAlpena/planning-commission

You can also dial in using your phone.

United States: +1 (571) 317-3112

Access Code: 178-564-461

#### **AGENDA**

CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Regular meeting December 13, 2022

PUBLIC HEARING AND COMMISSION ACTION - None

#### **BUSINESS**

a) UNFINISHED: None

b) NEW: Marihuana Updates -

Review First Reading of Ordinance 23-484 from Council Meeting

Link to Council Video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jW5yiC66M2k

Zoning Ordinance Discussion

c) COMMUNICATIONS OR REPORTS:

Sign Ordinance Update 2022 PC Annual Report

d) CONTINUING EDUCATION:

Housing in Four Parts Webinar Series (begins Jan 18) – Free for RRC Communities RRC Virtual Academy for Local Officials (begins in May)

**PUBLIC COMMENT** 

MEMBER COMMENTS

**ADJOURNMENT** 



#### MINUTES

# City of Alpena Planning Commission Regular Meeting (Council Chambers and Virtual) December 13, 2022 Alpena, Michigan

#### CALL TO ORDER:

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Randy Boboltz, Planning Commission Chairman.

ROLL CALL: Planning Commission

PRESENT: Boboltz, VanWagoner, Gilmore, Moses, Sundin, Kostelic

ABSENT: Wojda, Peterson

STAFF: Montiel Birmingham (Planning, Development, and Zoning Director), Kathleen

Sauve (Recording Secretary), Rachel Smolinski (City Manager appeared at

6:16pm)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Agenda was approved as printed.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Meeting October 11, 2022, minutes were approved as printed.

Boboltz explained the procedures for the public hearing.

PUBLIC HEARING AND COMMISSION ACTION: **Case # 22-Z-07** – Aaron Zarbaugh, is requesting a Conditional Rezone for his property at 423 South Seventh Avenue from R-2 to R-T to allow for a residential duplex rental dwelling.

Birmingham presented the Finding of Fact report. See Appendix A and B in Commission packet.

FAVOR: Zarbaugh, property owner, explained to the Commission that he bought the property assuming that it was already a legal duplex because it has two of everything – furnaces, hot water heaters, driveways. Moving forward, he said he would like to do everything the right way and move in the right direction. He stated that he tries to maintain the property nice and up to code.

OPPOSITION: Birmingham read one letter of opposition that was received.

Boboltz closed the public hearing at 6:11 pm.

Kostelic questioned whether there is something that the City can do going forward so that this situation does not happen as frequently. Birmingham stated that City officials have contacted all real estate agencies in our area to make them aware of the registration program and how it works. In the future they will revamp the City's website to include more information about the program so it is more obvious, and it would be an improvement from what the City has today. Kostelic suggested having a page people could go to, to see if their property is registered, which currently the BS&A program for the public does not offer.

Kostelic said she does not have any concerns about the overall upkeep of the property, as Zarbaugh owns seven rentals in the City and this one is in very good condition.

Sundin stated that it also lies on the real estate agents to pass along the information to the potential buyers that they need to do their due diligence, that they need to check if the zoning is correct, and to check it before they purchase. He stated this property fell through the cracks when he was City Planner and City Manager, and that the inspectors were always coming across properties that were not registered. He said he can not tell anybody why, and it is unfortunate, but those things do happen. He did not feel that it is the Planning Commission's responsibility to rectify on the part of the applicant, but it has been a duplex for many years, and it seems to be well maintained. He said that in his mind, he still sees this as spot zoning, even though it has conditions, which makes it a difficult case in that regard.

Birmingham stated that Sauve receives all the deeds from the County of Alpena as properties change hands, and as she is going through them to file them, there are some clues that she can key in on that would tell her if something could possibly be a rental that is not registered and has found several in that way.

VanWagoner asked if there is a list of pending issues that the City may have on certain properties. Birmingham answered that the City keeps track of that by looking for open enforcement records or cases that have not been finaled in BS&A system which only dates back to 2008, but in this case, because it was so old, it never made it into the system so we relied on the paper file to give any information of past history of any action on it.

Boboltz asked Zarbaugh if the separate mailing addresses were clearly marked previous to him owning it. Zarbaugh stated that there were always two mailboxes, but he put the numbers on them. Boboltz then stated that the City of Alpena's Comprehensive Plan incorporates R-1, R-2, and R-T into the same zone, so, although there have not been any proposed language changes to make the recommendation to City Council, that does tend to sway him a particular direction. Birmingham stated that there will be proposed changes coming in the future as they get into that part of the Zoning Ordinance update.

Moses stated that it really is a nice home. He asked if there was an open ordinance violation prior to the home being purchased. Birmingham stated that there was not.

Gilmore *motioned* to approve the recommendation to City Council, by City Staff, for the request of a Conditional Rezone of 423 South Seventh Avenue from R-2 to R-T as presented in the Finding of Fact report (Appendix A and B of Commission packet).

Kostelic **seconded** the motion.

Motion *approved* by unanimous vote.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None.

NEW BUSINESS: Review of Zoning Ordinance Article 1 and Article 2 – Birmingham stated that they will not be approving anything at the meeting, but simply discussing proposed language changes and circling back later as other articles are discussed. Discussion proceeded page by page, and any Commissioners with questions or comments spoke up at that time with notes below:

Page 2-9 Tourist Homes – discussed keeping Bed & Breakfast definition separate from Tourist Home and changing Tourist Home definition to Short Term Rental for clearer understanding.

Page 2-11 Child Care Homes – clear up the language of "between" vs current language for number of children

Page 2-16/17 Fourplex, Single Family Conversion – why do some talk about entry points and some do not? There are so many ways to design a building, should we be qualifying or possibly restricking based on entry points? Duplexes ownership vs rental – would require a zero lot line and it would have to be two separate lots for ownership. Single family conversions – why couldn't a duplex be considered a single family conversion as well? Most conversions within the city have been to a duplex. How many definitions do we need? Need to consider zoning and allowable uses.

Page 2-19 Why is a definition for a Full Time Equivalent Employee needed? Definition of an FTE might not always be defined exactly the same.

Page 2-20 Should we be defining by 30 or more days from a hotel stay perspective?

Page 2-22 Kennels – should the municipal code (3 dogs) be changed instead of the zoning ordinance (4 dogs) since they are in conflict?

Page 2-30 Parcel and lot may be interchangeable unless people are thinking of the word in terms of being a platted lot.

Page 2-34 Rooming House – look at combining definition with tourist home/short term rental – "rooming house" term is out of date.

Page 2-46 Transit Center - Need to expand the definition to include how the Thunder Bay Transportation Authority operates in case we ended up with something similar within City limits.

COMMUNICATIONS OR REPORTS: Approval of the 2023 Meeting Schedule - All dates are all tentatively set on the normal second Tuesday of the month. Boboltz suggested changing November's meeting to a date other than the 14<sup>th</sup>. Commissioners all decided that the previous Tuesday, November 13<sup>th</sup> would be a good alternative.

Sundin *motioned* to approve the 2023 meeting schedule with the exception of Tuesday November 14<sup>th</sup> date being changed to Monday November 13<sup>th</sup>.

VanWagoner **seconded** the motion.

Motion *approved* by unanimous vote.

CONTINUING EDUCATION: Birmingham stated that she will be sending some information related to housing, and also for the RRC program.

PUBLIC COMMENT: City Manager Smolinski thanked the Planning Commission for serving on the Board, and Staff for working hard to prepare the materials for the meeting.

MEMBERS' COMMENTS: Boboltz suggested that the City staff do something special for former Chairman Paul Sabourin for his lengthy tenure on the Planning Commission of more than forty years. City staff were in agreeance and stated that something was in the works and will be announced in the near future.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:18 p.m., by Boboltz, Planning Commission Chairman.

Clayton C. VanWagoner, Secretary

#### **ORDINANCE NO. 23-484**

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALPENA, MICHIGAN, AMENDING CHAPTER 18 – BUSINESSES, ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL, Sec. 18-1 MEDICAL MARIHUNA FACILITIES - BY REPEAL OF SAME AND ADOPTION OF NEW LANGUAGE IN LIEU THEREOF.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALPENA, STATE OF MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS:

#### Chapter 18 BUSINESSES<sup>1</sup>

#### ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

#### Sec. 18-1. Medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments.

- (a) Purpose, intent, relationship to other laws and city liability and indemnification.
  - (1) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to implement and establish a uniform licensing and regulatory process for medical and adult-use marihuana businesses to the extent permissible under the provisions of the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, (MCL 333.26421 et seq.), the Michigan Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act (MCL 333.27101 et seq.) the Marihuana Tracking Act (MCL 333.27901 et seq.), and the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act (MCL 333.27951 et seq.) referred to herein as the "Acts," so as to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents and patients of the city by setting forth the manner in which medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments can be operated in the city. Further, the purpose of this section is to:
    - a. Provide for a means of cultivation, processing, and distribution of marihuana to patients who qualify to obtain, possess, and use marihuana for medical purposes and for eligible adults with proper qualifying identification to obtain, possess, and use marihuana for legally allowable individual purposes under the Acts;
    - b. Protect public health and safety through reasonable limitations on marihuana operations as they relate to noise, air and water quality, neighborhood and patient/customer safety, security for the facility and its personnel, and other health and safety concerns;
    - c. Protect residential neighborhoods by limiting the location and the concentration of types of medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments to specific areas of the city;
    - d. Impose fees to defray and recover the cost to the city of the administrative and enforcement costs associated with medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments;
    - e. Coordinate with laws and regulations that may be enacted by the state addressing marihuana; and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Cross reference(s)—Amusements and entertainment, ch. 6; community development, ch. 26; railroads, ch. 70; secondhand goods, ch. 74; taxation, ch. 86; telecommunications, ch. 90; utilities, ch. 98; vehicles for hire, ch. 106.

- f. To restrict the issuance of medical marihuana facility and adult use marihuana establishment licenses only to individuals and entities that have demonstrated an intent and ability to comply with this section.
- (2) Legislative intent. This section authorizes the establishment of marihuana facilities and marihuana establishments within the city consistent with the Acts:
- a. Marihuana cultivation and processing can have an impact on health, safety, and community resources, and this section is intended to permit marihuana cultivation and processing where it will have a minimal impact;
- b. The regulations for medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments are not adequate at the State level to address the impacts on the city of the commercialization of marihuana, making it appropriate for local regulation of the impact of medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments on communities as provided for under the acts and expressly retained by municipal charter and any and all powers and immunities, expressed and implied which cities and their officers are, or hereafter may be, permitted to exercise or to provide for under the constitution and laws of the State;
- c. Nothing in this section is intended to promote or condone the distribution, or possession of marihuana in violation of any applicable State law;
- d. This section is to be construed to protect the public over medical marihuana facility and adult use marihuana establishment interests. Operation of a medical marihuana facility and adult use marihuana establishment is a revocable privilege and not a right in the city. There is no property right for an individual or facility to engage or obtain a license to engage in marihuana as a commercial business in the city.
  - (3) Relationship to federal law. As of the effective date of this section, marihuana is classified as a schedule 1 controlled substance under the Federal Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. Sec. 801 et seq., which makes it unlawful to manufacture, distribute, cultivate, produce, possess dispense or transport marihuana. Nothing in this section is intended to grant immunity from any criminal prosecution under federal law.
  - (4) Relationship to state law. As of the effective date of this section, as amended, and except as otherwise provided by the Acts; and this section, a city licensee and its employees and agents who are operating within the scope of a valid state-issued operating license are not subject to criminal or civil prosecution under city ordinances regulating marihuana.
    - Nothing in this section is intended to grant immunity from criminal or civil prosecution, penalty or sanction for the cultivation, manufacture, possession, use, sale, distribution or transport of marihuana in any form, that is not in strict compliance with the Acts, all applicable rules promulgated by the state regarding marihuana and all local laws, ordinances, rules and policies. Strict compliance with any applicable state law or regulation shall be deemed a requirement for the issuance or renewal of any license issued under this section, and noncompliance with any applicable state law or local law or regulation shall be grounds for revocation or nonrenewal of any license issued under the terms of this section.
  - (5) Reservation of legislative prerogative.
    - a. The city reserves the right to amend or repeal this chapter in any manner, including, but not limited to, the complete elimination of any type or number of medical marihuana facilities or adult-use marihuana establishments authorized to operate in the city.
    - b. Nothing in this chapter may be held or construed to grant or "grandfather" any medical marihuana facility a vested right, license, permit or privilege to continued operations within the city, except as granted by approval through the application and/or application renewal process and as consistent with all other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines of the state.
- (6) City liability and indemnification.

- a. By accepting a license issued pursuant to this section, the licensee waives and releases the city, its officers, elected officials, and employees from any liability for injuries, damages or liabilities of any kind that result from any arrest or prosecution of medical marihuana facility and adult use marihuana establishment owners, operators, employees, clients or customers for a violation of local, state or federal laws, rules or regulations.
- b. By accepting a license issued pursuant to this section, all licensees, agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, elected officials, employees, and insurers, against all liability, claims or demands arising on account of bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage or any other loss of any kind, including, but not limited to, any claim of diminution of property value by a property owner whose property is located in proximity to a licensed operating facility or establishment, arising out of, claimed to have arisen out of, or in any manner connected with the operation of a medical marihuana facility and adult use marihuana establishment or use of a product cultivated, processed, distributed or sold that is subject to the license, or any claim based on an alleged injury to business or property by reason of a claimed violation of the Federal Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO), 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).
- c. By accepting a license issued pursuant to this section, a licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless, the city, its officers, elected officials, employees, and insurers, against all liability, claims, penalties, or demands arising on account any alleged violation of the Federal Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 801 et seq. or article 7 of the Michigan Public Health Code, MCL 33.7101 et seq.
- (b) *Definitions*. Through this section, the city adopts all definitions contained in any of the state rules, regulations, statutes, administrative code, enacted for the purpose of regulating marihuana facilities and establishments.
- (c) Licensing of medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments.
  - (1) Local licensing authority.
    - a. The city council is designated as the local licensing authority. The city council may by resolution delegate its authority or a portion of such authority to a new committee or other designee to act as the local licensing authority. The local licensing authority shall have the duty and authority pursuant to the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act ("MMFLA") and Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act ("MRTMA") in this section to grant or deny an application described in this section and to levy penalties against the licensee in the manner provided by law.
    - b. The local license authority shall consider applications for new business premises, transfer of ownership, change of location, license premises modification, changes in trade name, and any other appropriate application.
    - c. The local license authority shall have the power to promulgate rules and regulations concerning the procedure for hearings before the local licensing authority.
    - d. The local license authority shall have the power to require any application or licensee to furnish such information to the authority as may be reasonably necessary in order for the authority to perform its duties and functions authorized by this section.
    - e. The local license authority shall have the power to administer oaths and issue subpoenas to require the presence of persons and the productions of papers, books and records at any hearing in which the authority is authorized to conduct. Any subpoena shall be served in the same manner as a subpoena issued by a district court of the state. The district court judge shall have the power and authority to enforce such subpoena.
  - (2) Number of permitted facilities. The maximum number of each type of medical marihuana facility and adult use marihuana establishment permitted in the city is as follows:

Туре	Number Permitted in City
Grower licenses of class A (maximum of 100 marihuana plants) as defined in the	Unlimited
MRTMA or class A (maximum of 500 marihuana plants) as defined in the MMFLA	
Grower licenses of class B (maximum of 500 marihuana plants) as defined in the	Unlimited
MRTMA or class B (maximum of 1,000 marihuana plants) as defined in the MMFLA	
Grower licenses of class C (maximum of 2,000 marihuana plants) as defined in the	Unlimited
MRTMA or class C (maximum of 1,500 marihuana plants) as defined in the MMFLA	
Marihuana microbusiness	Unlimited
Medical marihuana provisioning centers/marihuana retailers	Unlimited
Marihuana processor or medical marihuana processor facility	Unlimited
Marihuana safety compliance establishment or medical marihuana safety	Unlimited
compliance facility	
Secure transporter or medical marihuana secure transporter	Unlimited
Excess grower	Unlimited
Designated consumption center	Prohibited
Marihuana event organizer	Prohibited
Temporary event license	Prohibited

- (3) Location. No medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment shall be eligible to be issued a license unless at the time of application for such license, the location of the proposed facility complies with the zoning and separation distances from other uses as set forth in the city zoning ordinance as required for the specific type of medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment for which licensure is being sought;
- (4) Operation at location provided on application only. A licensee shall not operate a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment at any place in the city other than the address provided in the application on file with the city clerk.
- (5) Combined facilities. Multiple types of medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments may operate from a single location pursuant to the Acts, State of Michigan rules, and the city zoning ordinance. A combined facility shall pay one licensing fee upon application if the combined facility is applied for concurrently. If a medical marihuana facility or adult use establishment is added to an existing facility or establishment, a new application and licensing fee shall be required. Annual renewal of the combined facility shall require one fee.
- (6) Stacking of licenses. Any grower issued a license by the city may stack up to three class C licenses at a single location without requiring any additional city licensing or approval, provided that the exterior of the existing structure where the facility is located will not require expansion. If expansion is required, the licensee must obtain all necessary permits and approval required for such expansion.
- (7) Expansion of license classification. Provided further that any licensed grower in the city that holds anything less than a state issued class C license may, at any time, expand the license classification without requiring city approval. By way of example: licensee holding a state issued class A license may expand at any time to a state issued class B or C and may further stack up to three class C licenses as provided above without city approval.
- (8) License and annual fees required.
  - a. No person shall establish or operate a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment in the city without first having obtained from the city and the state a license for each such facility or establishment to be operated. License certificates shall be kept current and publicly displayed within the facility or establishment. Failure to maintain or display a current license certificate shall be a violation of this section;

- b. An annual, nonrefundable licensing fee to defray the administrative and enforcement costs associated with medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments located in the city of not more than \$5,000.00 per license or in an amount established by resolution adopted by the city council or in an amount established by state law;
- c. The annual, nonrefundable application/reapplication fee, as determined by city council resolution from time to time, per license required under this section shall be due and payable with the application for a license and upon the application for renewal of any such license under this section. This application/reapplication fee shall be considered part of the licensing fee in subsection (8)b;
- d. The annual, nonrefundable inspection fee, as determined by city council resolution from time to time, per licensed facility required under this section shall be due and payable with the application for annual inspection and upon the application for renewal of any such license under this section; This inspection fee shall be considered part of the licensing fee in subsection (8)b;
- e. The fees set forth herein shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other licensing and permitting requirements imposed by any other federal, state, or city ordinance, including, by way of example any applicable zoning or building permits;
- f. The issuance of any license pursuant to this section does not create an exception, defense or immunity to any person in regard to any potential criminal liability the person may have for the production, distribution, or possession of marihuana under federal law;
- g. A separate license shall be required for each facility or establishment type or premise from which a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment is operated.
- h. The term of each license shall expire on the same day as the State of Michigan license. be one year beginning when the licensee is granted a certificate of occupancy and permit from the building and safety inspections division.
- i. The annual license established pursuant to the above paragraph may be renewed subject to renewal of the State of Michigan license and local approval; license expires on the same day as the State of Michigan license. begins and commences at the time of the receipt of the applicant's certificate of occupancy by the city.
- (9) Application requirements.
  - a. A person seeking a license pursuant to the Acts and the provisions of this section shall submit an application to the city on forms provided by the city. All documents submitted to the city shall be submitted digitally; hard copies may be requested in both hardcopy and digital formats. At the time of application, each applicant shall pay a nonrefundable application fee to defray the costs incurred by the city for background investigations and inspection of the proposed premises, as well as any other costs associated with the processing of the application. In addition, the applicant shall present a suitable form of identification.
  - b. The applicant shall also provide a complete copy of their application for State approval, including, but not limited to:
    - 1. "Approved for prequalification" letter from the State of Michigan.
    - 1. 2. Proof of ownership or authorization to use the property for a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment.
    - 2. 3. A notarized statement from the owner of such property authorizing the use of the property for a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment, if the applicant is not the owner of the proposed licensed premises;

- 3. 4. A copy of any deed reflecting the applicant's ownership of, or lease reflecting the right of the applicant to possess, or an option reflecting the applicant's right to purchase or lease, the proposed licensed premises.
- 4. 5. The non-refundable application fee for a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license is \$1,500.00 per license or as established by resolution adopted by city council or in an amount established by state law. This application fee shall be considered part of the licensing fee in subsection (8)b; applications not in completed status within one year of initial submission must be resubmitted in its entirety and a new non-refundable application fee must be paid.
- c. For medical marihuana provisioning centers, marihuana retailers, and marihuana microbusinesses, medical marihuana facilities or adult use marihuana establishments, the following shall apply, except for Secure Transporters where applicable:
  - At least one applicant shall demonstrate experience with owning (51 percent or more), operating, and/or managing a business with inventory tracking and control (min. of one year) pursuant to MCL 125.3501, MCL 125.3502, MCL 125.3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution.
  - 2. At least one applicant shall demonstrate experience with owning (51 percent or more), operating, and/or managing a business in a highly regulated industry (min. of one year). Highly regulated means subject to regulation by LARA or a similarly regulated agency (state or federal) pursuant to MCL 125.3501, MCL 125.3502, MCL 125.3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution.
  - 3. Applicant shall present a detailed description of estimated capital investment. Capital investment is defined as a fixed asset, which is an asset purchased for a long-term use and not likely to be converted quickly into cash such as land, buildings, and equipment pursuant to MCL 125.3501, MCL 125.3502, MCL 125.3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution.
  - 4. Applicant shall include a business location plan as outlined by the State of Michigan and should which also includes a daily operations schedule outlining opening and closing procedures.
  - 5. Applicant shall present a proposed staffing plan, complete with descriptions of job duties, proposed wages, and employee qualifications/hiring criteria pursuant to MCL 125.3501, MCL 125.3502, MCL 125.3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution.
  - 6. Applicant shall present a documented employee policy book and code of ethics to ensure honesty and integrity of employees.
  - Applicant shall present a sworn attestation that the Applicant and/or parties with 25
    percent or more interest in the company have not been subject to any civil monetary
    judgements entered against it in the last seven years, excluding family law matters or
    estate disputes.
  - 8. Applicant shall present a sworn attestation that the Applicant and/or parties with 25 percent or more interest in the company have not filed bankruptcy within the last seven years.

- 9. Applicant shall present a plan to deter and prevent unauthorized entrance into the facility.
- 10. Applicant shall present a plan to prevent theft and diversion.
- 11. Applicant shall present a plan for 24/7 video surveillance inside and outside of facility.
- 12. Applicant shall present a plan for secure storage of medical marihuana and proceeds.
- 13. Applicant shall present a detailed plan for record keeping and inventory management.
- 14. Applicant shall provide copies of material safety data sheets for hazardous materials and their plan for storage and disposal (or a sworn attestation that no hazardous materials will be on the premises at any time).
- 15. Applicant shall present a plan that includeds a security system in place to alert owner of possible tampering with the facility or its contents.
- 16. Applicant shall propose a living wage (at least 200 percent of the Federal Poverty Level for a family of two, at its hourly basis) to all employees pursuant to MCL 125.3501, MCL 125.3502, MCL 125.3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution.
- 17. Applicant shall offer a benefits package in addition to wages or salary pursuant to MCL 125.3501, MCL 125.3502, MCL 125.3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution.

#### (10) Review process.

- a. Within fourteen (14) days of application submittal, city staff will determine if the application is complete and will notify the applicant if there are deficiencies.
- b. After receiving notification from city staff pursuant to subsection (10)a above, the applicant shall have fourteen (14) days from the date of said notification to submit additional information.
- c. Within thirty (30) days of the application being determined to be complete, city staff will review the application to determine compliance with this section and shall notify the applicant that the applicant is approved to proceed with the inspection phase pursuant to subsection (12).

#### (11) Denial of application and due process.

- a. The city shall reject any application that does not meet the requirements of the Acts or this section, or any pertinent provision of any State of Michigan or City of Alpena laws, rules or regulations.
- b. In accordance with the Acts, an applicant may be ineligible to receive a license under this section if any of the following circumstances:
  - The applicant has knowingly submitted an application for license that contains false, misleading or fraudulent information, or who has intentionally omitted pertinent information for the application for license.
  - 2. The applicant fails to meet other criteria established by the Acts or other pertinent law and/or obtain a state license.
  - 3. The applicant does not submit proof of "approved for prequalification" with the state.
- c. Denial of application; due process.
  - 1. Those applicants denied a license based on qualifications may appeal the decision within 30 days of notification of denial. The city council shall hear and decide questions or

- requests for due process that arise after city staff have reviewed and provided a decision that the applicant wishes to further appeal.
- 2. The applicant must submit a narrative request for due process that includes detailed information and all supporting documentation for any/all points they wish to have city council consider.
  - i. Within 30 days of notification of appeal by the applicant, a due process review shall be conducted at a public meeting of the council and a concurring vote of a majority of the members of the full city council is necessary to reverse an order, requirement, decision or determination of an administrative official in the interpretation of this section;
  - ii. The applicant must be present at the designated council meeting or forfeits their right to due process;
  - iii. The decision of the city council is final.
- (12) Issuance of city medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment operating license.
  - a. *Special use permit*. The proposed medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment shall obtain a special use permit from the planning commission.
  - b. Inspection. An occupancy inspection of the proposed medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment by the city shall be required prior to the issuance of the city operating license in accordance with the currently adopted Michigan Building Code. Such inspection shall occur after the premises are ready for operation, but prior to the stocking of the business with any marihuana and prior to the opening of the business to any patients or the public. The inspection is to verify that the business facilities are constructed and can be operated in accordance with the application submitted and the applicable requirements of the code and any other applicable law, rule or regulation.
  - c. In the event that the medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment is granted a license but fails to substantially comply with its original site plan or operates inconsistent with the manner in which it was represented on the licensing application, the city may revoke the license or may allow the licensee to present its case for modification of its original facility and license to the planning commission. If the planning commission approves the changes, then the city will take no further action regarding the licensee's license. If the licensee fails to address its substantial non-compliance with the planning commission, then the city may revoke the license and may prohibit the licensee from applying for a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license in the future.
  - d. After verification that the business facilities are constructed and can be operated in accordance with the application submitted and the applicable requirements of the code and any other applicable law, rule or regulation, the city clerk shall issue a city medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license whose term shall run concurrent with the state license for the facility or establishment.
  - e. Maintaining a valid medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license issued by the state is a condition for the issuance and maintenance of the city medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment operating license issued under this section and the continued operation of a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment.
  - f. The city will authorize approved medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license(s) to entities on the condition that the following have been submitted, completed and approved:
    - 1. Application on a form provided by the city; and

- 2. Paid all licensing fees due to the city; and
- 3. The entity(ies) holds an approved and fully authorized State of Michigan approved medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license to the city clerk; and
- 4. An approved special land use permit from the planning commission; and
- 5. An approved certificate of occupancy from the applicable building official; and
- 6. All medical marihuana facilities or adult use marihuana establishments shall obtain a State of Michigan license and all other required permits or licenses related to the operation of the medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment, including, without limitation, any development approvals or building permits required by any applicable code or ordinance prior to opening to the public; including but not limited to any approved building permits (as required for any construction/deconstruction) by the city official as appropriate. Any such license and required permits shall be acquired within one (1) year from the date of approval by city council unless that period is extended by mutual agreement of the city council and licensee.
- 7. Proof of insurance. A licensee shall at all times maintain full force and effect for duration of the license, workers compensation as required by state law, and general liability insurance with minimum limits of \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and a \$2,000,000.00 aggregate limit issued from a company licensed to do business in the state having an AM Best rating of at least A-.
- 8. The policy shall name the city and its officials and employees as additional insureds to the limits required by this section. A licensee or its insurance broker shall notify the city of any cancellation or reduction in coverage within seven (7) days of receipt of insurer's notification to that effect. The licensee, permittee, or lessee shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of substitute insurance to the city clerk within five business days in the event of expiration or cancellation of coverage.
- 9. Applicant will provide any additional information that the city clerk, law enforcement, fire chief, public works supervisor, zoning administrator, building official, city manager and/or city attorney or their designees reasonably determines to be necessary in connection with the investigation and review of the application.
- (13) License forfeiture. In the event that a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment does not commence operations within one (1) year of issuance of a city operating license, the license shall be deemed forfeited; the business may not commence operations, unless extended by a majority vote of the full city council.
- (14) License renewal. A valid medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license may be renewed on an annual basis by a renewal application upon a form provided by the city and payment of annual fees.
  - a. *Timeline of renewal application*. An application to renew a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license shall be filed at least ninety (90) sixty (60) days prior to the date of its expiration and the license may be extended up to 60 days pending renewal by the State of Michigan and verification of submission.
  - b. Late fee. In the event that the renewed application is not submitted in accordance with this section, the city will assess a late fee as fixed by city council for each day that the renewal application is submitted late.
  - c. Late fee after expiration. In the event that an application is not received by the date of expiration, an additional late fee shall be assigned by the city council not to exceed \$2,000.00, in addition to the daily late fees outlined herein and annual renewal fee. The license will be considered null and void and all operations must immediately cease by order of law enforcement.

- d. *Expiration*. In the event that an application is not received by the date of expiration, the license will be considered null and void and all operations must immediately cease by order of law enforcement.
- e. Notice of revocation. A notice of local revocation will be issued to the state and the licensee will have to resubmit all documentation, fees, and receive all approvals as a new entity should they wish to reopen their business.
- f. Annual inspection. Prior to the issuance of a renewed medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license by the city, the premises shall be inspected to assure that it and its systems are in compliance with the requirements of this section. The annual, nonrefundable inspection fee, as assigned by the city council, per licensed facility or establishment required under this section, shall be due and payable with the application for annual inspection and upon the application for renewal of any such license under this section.

#### (15) Transfer, sale, or purchase of license.

- a. A medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license is valid only for the owner named thereon, the type of business disclosed on the application for the license, and the location for which the license is issued. The licensees of a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license are only those persons disclosed in the application or subsequently disclosed to the city in accordance with this section.
- Each operating license is exclusive to the licensee and location. A licensee or any other person
  must submit an application for licensure with the city clerk before a license is transferred, sold, or
  purchased.
- c. In compliance with any/all rules issued by the board regarding the sale, transfer or purchase of existing licenses; any entity that holds a city-issued license may transfer or sell their license to a qualifying applicant.
  - 1. Any entity purchasing or receiving a transferred license must submit an application and all associated documentation and all fees;
  - 2. The applicant who is receiving the transfer or purchasing the license must have submitted all new application, license and inspection fees and received all local and State of Michigan approvals, including "approved for prequalification" with the state on all applications and associated documentation as well as all inspections as outlined in this section and the Acts prior to beginning or taking over operations.
- d. The attempted transfer, sale, or other conveyance of an interest in a license without city approval is grounds for suspension or revocation of the license or for other sanction considered appropriate by the city.
- e. The following actions constitute transfer of ownership and require a new application, application fee and city council approval by the local licensing authority:
  - 1. *Persons*. Any transfer of more than one percent of an ownership interest in an applicant or permit holder between persons constitutes a transfer of ownership.
  - Corporations. Any transfer of more than one percent of stock or any change in principal
    officers or directors of any corporation holding a permit constitutes a transfer of
    ownership.
  - 3. Limited liability companies. Any transfer of more than one percent of membership interest or any change in members or change in the interest held by member(s) of any limited liability company holding a permit constitutes a transfer of ownership.

- 4. *Partnerships*. Any change of more than one percent of a partnership interest or any change in general or managing partners of any partnership holding a permit constitutes a transfer of ownership.
- 5. *Assets*. Any transfer of more than one percent of the assets held by an applicant or permit holder constitutes a transfer of ownership.

#### f. Effect of transfer.

- 1. Immediately following the approval of a transfer of ownership by the city, the transferee(s) will obtain all the interests, rights, obligations and responsibilities of the previous license holder. Once a license holder has transferred his or her ownership interest, any privileges enjoyed by that license holder under this ordinance are terminated.
- 2. For transfers, the renewal and termination dates of the license shall not change.

#### (16) License as revocable privilege.

- a. An operating license granted by this section is a revocable privilege granted by the city and is not a property right. Granting a license does not create or vest any right, title, franchise, or other property interest.
- b. Each license is exclusive to the licensee, and a licensee or any other person must apply for and receive the city's approval before a license is transferred, sold, or purchased.
- c. A licensee or any other person shall not lease, pledge, or borrow or loan money against a license.
- d. Any effort to circumvent the protocol listed in this section and/or the city zoning ordinance will result in the immediate denial of application or complete revocation of the city-issued medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license.

#### (17) Nonrenewal, suspension, or revocation of license.

- a. The city may, after notice, suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a license for any of the following reasons:
  - 1. The applicant or licensee, or his or her agent, manager or employee, has violated, does not meet, or has failed to comply with, any of the terms, requirements, conditions or provisions of this section or with any applicable state or local law or regulation;
  - 2. The applicant or licensee, or his or her agent, manager or employee, has failed to comply with any special terms or conditions of its license pursuant to an order of the state or local licensing authority, including those terms and conditions that were established at the time of issuance of the license and those imposed as a result of any disciplinary proceedings held subsequent to the date of issuance of the license; or
  - 3. The medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment has been operated in a manner that adversely affects the public health, safety or welfare;
  - 4. The licensee has not submitted all necessary documentation and/or fees to renew their license.
- b. Evidence to support a finding under this section may include, without limitation, a continuing pattern of conduct, a continuing pattern of drug-related criminal conduct within the premises or property occupied by the medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment, a continuing pattern of criminal conduct directly related to or arising from the operation of the medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment, or an ongoing nuisance condition as defined and contained in Chapter 50, Nuisances of the City of Alpena Code of Ordinances, emanating from or caused by the medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment or any other concerns raised by city staff and/or other local, state or federal

- officials. Criminal conduct shall be limited to the violation of a state law or regulation or city ordinance.
- c. Any decision of nonrenewal, suspension or revocation has the right to due process and may be eligible for appeal to the city council.
- (d) General requirements and restrictions. All medical marihuana facilities or adult use marihuana establishments operating within the city shall be subject to the following general requirements and restrictions. To the extent there is a conflict between these requirements and restrictions and the Act, the Act shall prevail.
  - (1) General requirements.
    - a. *Exterior signage*. Facilities and establishments may only use exterior signage that is in compliance with the city's zoning ordinance regarding signs and Michigan law. Facilities may not use exterior signage or displays with neon, flashing lights, or similarly noxious or obtrusive lighting or effects.
    - b. *Hours of operation.* Provisioning centers, retailers, and microbusinesses may only operate between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.
    - c. Indoor oOperations Indoor ooperations Indoor oo perations Indoo
      - 1. All business operations of a facility or establishment must occur indoors.
      - 2. Facilities and establishments may shall not provide drive-thru service, but may provide curbside service based on an approved site plan. All curb-side pick-up orders must be paid for in advance; exchange of payment shall not occur outside.
      - 3. Approval from the State of Michigan to allow delivery to residential addresses must be provided to the City of Alpena once approved by the State of Michigan.
      - 4. The growth and cultivation of marihuana outdoors is not permitted.
    - d. *Odors*. Facilities and establishments may not emit noxious odors or fumes, in accordance with the city's zoning ordinance regarding visibility of activities; control of emissions.
    - e. *Artificial lighting*. Any artificial grow lighting must not be visible from neighboring properties, streets, or rights-of-way.
    - f. Security. Facilities and establishments shall have:
      - 1. A monitored alarm system (24 hours per day and seven days a week);
      - 2. A safe for all cash, cash equivalents, and marihuana stored in the facility or establishment overnight shall be in a room secured by commercial grade security doors;
      - 3. Monitored security cameras covering, at a minimum, all parking areas, curbside pickup areas, entrances and exits, points of sale, and all areas where marihuana is stored or handled. All security recordings must be maintained for a minimum of forty-five (45) days and provided to law enforcement upon request;
    - g. *Display of permit*. The permit issued by the city and the license issued by the state shall be prominently displayed within the facility in a location where it can be easily viewed by the public.
    - h. *Systems*. All facilities and establishments shall have electrical, fire safety, plumbing, filtration and waste disposal systems, which are appropriate and consistent with best industry practices for the business being conducted.
  - (2) Prohibited acts.
    - a. No person under the age of eighteen (18) shall be permitted to enter a facility unless the person has a medical marihuana card and is accompanied by a legal guardian over the age of eighteen (18).

- b. No marihuana may be smoked, used, or consumed at any facility.
- c. It shall be unlawful for any licensee to permit the consumption of alcohol beverages on the licensed premises.
- d. No facility or establishment may operate under a temporary certificate of occupancy. Facilities and establishments shall be in full compliance with all applicable legal requirements in order to operate.
- e. It shall be unlawful for any licensee holding a provisioning center, retailer, or microbusiness license, or for any agent, manager, or employee thereof to:
  - 1. Sell, give, dispense or otherwise distribute medical marihuana or adult use marihuana paraphernalia from any outdoor location;
  - 2. Sell, give, dispense or otherwise distribute to any patient or primary caregiver who is not a licensee more usable form of medical marihuana (including the useable medical marihuana equivalent of medical marihuana-infused products) within any seven-day period of time than they are allowed by the MMMA to possess;
  - 3. It shall be unlawful for a provisioning center, retailer, or microbusiness to distribute marihuana or marihuana-infused products to a consumer free of charge.

#### (3) Inspection of licensed premises.

- a. Application for medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment license or operation of a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment, or leasing property to a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment, constitutes consent by the applicant, and all owners, managers, and employees of the business, and the owner of the property to permit law enforcement, or their designee, to conduct routine examinations and inspections of the medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment to ensure compliance with this section or any other applicable law, rule or regulation.
- b. During all business hours and other times when the premises are occupied by the licensee or an employee or agent of the licensee, all licensed premises shall be subject to examination and inspection by law enforcement and any other city departments for the purpose of investigating and determining compliance with the provisions of this section and any other applicable state and local laws or regulations.
- c. For the purposes of this section, examinations and inspections of medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments and recordings from security cameras in such businesses are part of the routine policy of enforcement of this section for the purpose of protecting the public safety, individuals operating and using the services of the medical marihuana facilities and adult use marihuana establishments, and the adjoining properties and neighborhoods.
- d. A licensee, or an employee or agent of the licensee, shall not threaten, hinder or obstruct a law enforcement officer or a city inspector or investigator in the course of making an examination or inspection of the licensed premises and shall not refuse, fail, or neglect to cooperate with a law enforcement officer, inspector, or investigator in the performance of his or her duties to enforce this section, the Acts, or applicable state administrative rules.
- (e) Other laws remain applicable. To the extent the State of Michigan adopts in the future any additional or stricter law or regulation governing the sale or distribution of medical marihuana, the additional or stricter regulation shall control the establishment or operation of any medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment in the city. Compliance with any applicable state law or regulation shall be deemed an additional requirement for issuance or denial of any license, and noncompliance with any applicable state law or regulation shall be grounds for the revocation or suspension of any license.

- (f) Grant of administrative authority. The city clerk is granted the power and duty, through its official designation, to fully and effectively implement and administer the license application process and issuance of operating licenses issued by the city under this section. The city clerk, after consultation with other city departments, may promulgate such rules as necessary to implement and administer this section.
- (g) Violations and penalties.
  - (1) In addition to the possible denial, suspension, revocation or nonrenewal of a license under the provisions of this section, any person, including, but not limited to, any licensee, manager or employee of a medical marihuana facility or adult use marihuana establishment, or any customer of such business, who violates any of the provisions of this section, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable in accordance with this section unless a different penalty is provided herein.
  - (2) If a facility is operated in violation of the Act or any applicable ordinance, or if the licensee is found to have submitted false or misleading information in its permit application, the city may revoke the permit for such facility to operate within the city. The city retains the right to alter the number and type of facilities and establishments authorized hereunder at any time. Any permit granted hereunder is a revocable privilege granted by the city and is not a property or other legal right.
  - (3) With respect to any facility that is in violation of any requirement or restriction set forth in this section, the licensee of a facility, all persons identified pursuant to the Acts, and any on-site manager shall be subject to the following penalties:
    - a. Any violation shall be a misdemeanor and may be punished by a fine of not more than \$1,500.00 and/or imprisonment not exceeding ninety (90) days and the violator(s) shall pay all court costs and expenses.
    - b. The penalties set forth herein are non-exclusive and cumulative, and nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent city from enforcing any other applicable ordinance.
    - c. In addition to the remedies provided herein, the city may file for injunctive relief to abate any violation hereof.

(Ord. No. 20-454, 6-1-20; Ord. No. 21-459, 6-21-21; Ord. No. 21-467, 12-20-21)

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 20-454, adopted June 1, 2020, amended the Code by repealing former § 18-1 and adding a new § 18-1. Former § 18-1 prohibited marihuana businesses and establishments within the city, and derived from Ord. No. 19-443, adopted March 4, 2019. Prior to inclusion of 19-443, § 18-1 pertained to a moratorium on issuance of permits or licenses for sale or dispensation of medical marihuana within the city, and derived from Ord. No. 10-399, adopted September 7, 2010.

Secs. 18-2—18-30. Reserved.

### **EFFECTIVE DATE**

THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL TAKE EFFECT TEN (10) DAYS AFTER BEING ADOPTED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL AND DULY PUBLISHED.

	L OF THE CITY OF A	ABOVE ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE ALPENA, MICHIGAN, AT A REGULAR MEETING 2023.
		Matthew J. Waligora Mayor
		Anna Soik City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director
First Presented: January Adopted:	,	210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210 210
Published:	, 2023	
William A. Pfeifer, City	Attorney	



## Planning, Development, & Zoning —

## **City of Alpena Planning Commission 2022 Annual Report**

The City of Alpena Planning Commission is made up of nine members. The Commission regularly meets on the second Tuesday of the month in the Council Chambers at City Hall located at 208 N First Avenue. Members of the Commission and public may also attend virtually via Go To Meeting. A typical meeting consists of review of the previous month's meeting minutes, public hearings, unfinished or new business, communications, reports from staff, public comments, and member comments.

Planning Commission members at the start of CY 2022 included: Paul Sabourin (Chairman), Randy Boboltz (Vice Chairman), Steve Gilmore (Secretary), Clay VanWagoner, Matt Wojda, Claire Kostelic, Ashley Peterson and Diane Bauer (one open position); see details below for changes in Planning Commission members.

#### PC Meeting Dates and Case Summaries:

**January 11, 2022** – P.C. Case No. 22-Z-01 – Recommendation to approve a Rezone request for 124 E Clark St from R-2 to R-T. Request was approved through City Council.

P.C. Case No. 22-TXT-01 – Adult Use Marihuana Text Amendment – ordinance amended to update Zoning Ordinance to Allow for Adult Use Establishments after City Council approval of Adult Use.

Business – Proposed updates to By-laws discussed

**February 8, 2022 –** P.C. Case No. 22-Z-02 – Recommendation to approve a Conditional Rezone request for 327 N Addison St. from R-2 to R-T. Request was approved through City Council.

Proposed changes to the Outdoor Dining Ordinance were reviewed with participation from the DDA Executive Director.

February 16, 2022 – Joint Session with Council to review 2023-2028 Capital Improvement Plans

March 8, 2022 – P.C. Case # 22-SU-01 – Approved a Special Use permit request from Neighborhood Provisions to allow an Adult Use Marihuana establishment within a previously approved Medica Marihuana Establishment at 909 W Washington.



## =Planning, Development, & Zoning===

P.C. Case # 22-SU-02 – Denied a Special Use Permit request from Meds Café to allow an Adult Use Marihuana Establishment at 427 W. Washington.

Outdoor Dining Amendments discussed.

Training Opportunities Discussed: Conflicts of Interest – obtained by MSU Extension

**April 12, 2022** – Rehearing of P.C. Case # 22-SU-02 resulting in a second denial of Special Use Permit request from Meds Café to allow an Adult Use Marihuana establishment at 427 W. Washington.

P.C. Case # 22-Z-03 - Recommendation to approve a Conditional Rezone request for 1102 Ford Ave from R-2 to R-T. Request was approved through City Council.

Outdoor Dining Amendments approved and recommended to City Council; recommendations were approved by City Council.

2021-2025 Alpena Marina Master Plan presented by Shannon Smolinski, City of Alpena Harbor Master and was recommended for adoption by the City Council; City Council approved.

May 10, 2022 – Approval of Food Truck Park located at 115-119 River Street (Red Brick).

Electric Vehicle Charging Presentation in partnership with Alpena Power Company.

Comprehensive Plan Goals – commissioners weighed in on Comprehensive Plan goals that they would like to focus on during the coming year.

Training Opportunities Provided: MSU Extension Making Defensible Decisions: Discretionary Standards, Conditions, and Procedural Due Process; Planning and Zoning for Solar Energy Systems; MAP Planning and Zoning Essentials Workshop, in Oscoda, Michigan; MSU Extension Citizen Planner training

**June 14, 2022 –** P.C. Case # 22-Z-04 - Recommendation to approve a Conditional Rezone request for 933 Lockwood from R-2 to R-T. Request was approved through City Council.

P.C. Case # 22-SU-03 - Approved a Special Use Permit request from Zella Cannabis to allow an Adult Use Marihuana Establishment at 1105 W. Chisholm St.

Additional discussion of Comprehensive Plan Goals



## =Planning, Development, & Zoning===

Election of Officers – Randy Boboltz becomes Chair; Steve Gilmore becomes Vice-Chair; Clay VanWagoner becomes Secretary

July 12, 2022 – Meeting Cancelled - Diane Bauer Resigned as Planning Commissioner on July 8, 2022 (resulting in two open seats)

August 9, 2022 – Meeting Cancelled

**September 20, 2022** – P.C. Case # 22-Z-05 - Recommendation to approve a Rezone request for 216 South 8<sup>th</sup> Ave from R-2 to R-T. Request was approved through City Council.

Continuing Education Materials Provided: Approval of Meeting Minutes when Absent (MSU Exchange)

October 11, 2022 – P.C. Case # 22-Z-06 - Conditional Rezone requested for the properties located at 1223 and 1233 South State Avenue to add a drive thru and drive up window in the future. Recommendation to approve the rezone from CCD to B-2 for the Lud's Professional Building (1223 S State), but deny the request for rezone of Mancino's (1233 S State) from CCD to B-2. Request was approved through City Council as Planning Commission recommended.

Joint Session with City Council to discuss zoning ordinance topics related to Housing, Short Term Rentals, Parking, and Signage.

Continuing Education Materials Provided: Understanding the Role of the Chair (MSU Exchange)

Paul Sabourin resigned from the Planning Commission at the end of his term (11/1/22).

**November 15, 2022** – Meeting Cancelled; during the month of November, Chris Moses and Greg Sundin were appointed to the Planning Commission (one open seat remains).

**December 13, 2022** – P.C. Case # 22-Z-07 – Recommendation to approve a Conditional Rezone request for 423 South 7<sup>th</sup> Ave R-2 to R-T. Request was approved through City Council.

Zoning Ordinance Article Review – Articles 1 & 2 Reviewed – Article 2 "Definitions" will be a working document until all other Articles are reviewed.

The 2023 Planning Commission meeting schedule is approved.



City Hall 208 North First Avenue Alpena, Michigan 49707 www.alpena.mi.us

## —Planning, Development, & Zoning—

## 2022 Planning Commission and Staff Ongoing Education

Member	Education	Date	Hours
Montiel Birmingham	Attainable Housing Series MSU Extension	January	4
Montiel Birmingham	Zoning Administrator Certificate Program	January	3
Montiel Birmingham	Zoning Administrator Certificate Program	February	16
Montiel Birmingham	Brownfield	April	2
Montiel Birmingham	Green Infrastructure	May	2
Montiel Birmingham	Effective Board Meetings and Good Governance MSU Extension	May	3
Diane Bauer	Effective Board Meetings and Good Governance MSU Extension	May	3
PC Members & Montiel Birmingham	Electric Vehicle Charging	May	1 hour each
Montiel Birmingham	MAP Solar Webinar	June	1.5
Montiel Birmingham	MAP Oscoda MI Zoning Workshop	June	4
Montiel Birmingham	MAP Clean Energy in Master Plans	July	2
Montiel Birmingham	MAP Zoning Districts + Solar Energy	July	6
Montiel Birmingham	MAP Solar + Wind Energy	August	8
Montiel Birmingham	MSHDA Missing Middle Housing Program	September	1.5
Montiel Birmingham	Coastal Leadership Academy	September	2.5
Montiel Birmingham	Coastal Leadership Academy	October	6.5
Montiel Birmingham	MAP PDZ Workshop – Oscoda; Housing, PUDs, Form Based Code	November	2



## RRC VIRTUAL ACADEMY FOR LOCAL OFFICIALS

May 18 thru June 22, 2023

**RRC Virtual Academy** provides an opportunity to learn the basics about Redevelopment Ready Communities<sup>®</sup>.

Join us for a **free training opportunity** and learn more about RRC!



## **Housing Webinar in Four Parts:**

Master Planning, Zoning Reform, Stand by Your Plan, Accessory Dwelling Units
January 18, 25 and February 1, 8

MAP members: \$150 | Nonmembers: \$175 | Student Members: \$35 | Register at www.planningmi.org







## Master Planning for Housing | January 18, 2023 | 11 AM to 1 PM

The housing element of a master plan focuses not just on today's shelter goals for current residents, but also for the residents a community hopes to attract and retain well into the future. A housing element that includes a thoughtful and robust analysis of appropriate demographic data, coupled with a comprehensive community engagement program, can establish the framework to get the community on board and informed about local housing needs and gaps. This workshop will reveal what data must be considered and how to get your community on board from the beginning of the planning process, so that there is buy in at the end for policies that embrace an appropriate mix of housing now and into the future.

#### Zoning Reform in Michigan | January 25, 2023 | 11 AM to 1 PM

MAP's Zoning Reform Toolkit for Housing Supply and Choice, completed in June 2022, was created to provide local regulatory solutions that can be implemented now, without changes to the State Zoning Enabling Act. This session provides background on the national housing shortage and its effects in our State, an overview of the 15 tools included in the Toolkit, insight about selecting the tools that match your housing market, and talking points to get you past common obstacles to implementing successful housing solutions.

## Stand by Your Plan | February 1, 2023 | 11 AM to 1 PM

Density resistant neighbors can have a chilling effect on new housing development, even if the density increases are modest and "around the edges." This workshop provides step by step guidance for navigating the "hot seat" of public input to anyone responsible for project approval. It includes new research on public participation in development review, including a first-ever dive into the data of who participates and why and presents strategies for laying the groundwork for future successful projects.

## Accessory Dwelling Units | February 8, 2023 | 11 AM to 1 PM

ADUs because of their size and the ad hoc nature of their development fit into almost all Michigan communities. This session dives into the five elements of ADUs (what, where, when, how, why). The workshop includes several hands on exercises where participants try their hand at placing an ADU on a property, ADUs in a neighborhood, as well as a whole municipality. Participants will be asked to bring some current and historical census data about their own community.

Reference Book Included with Registration.

Sessions will be recorded and available to watch on demand.

RRC Communities: you are eligible for discount pricing. Contact your RRC Community Planner for details!